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EXPLANATORY NOTE

This Amendment No. 1 on Form 8-K/A (“Amendment No. 1) amends the Current Report on Form 8-K of Adaptin Bio, Inc. (the “Company”), filed February 18, 2025 (the
“Original Report”), in which the Company reported, among other events, the completion of the Merger (as defined in the Original Report).

This Amendment No. 1 is being filed solely for the purpose of updating certain items in the Original Report under Item 2.01 and Item 9.01. This Amendment No. 1 does not
amend any other item of the Original Report or purport to provide an update or a discussion of any developments at the Company or its subsidiaries subsequent to the filing
date of the Original Report. The information previously reported in or filed with the Original Report is hereby incorporated by reference to this Form 8-K/A. Capitalized terms
used but not defined herein have the meanings assigned to them in the Original Report.




Item 2.01 Completion of Acquisition or Disposition of Assets.

Financial Information

The audited financial statements of Adaptin Bio Operating Corporation (previously, and as of the date of the audited financial statements filed herewith, Adaptin Bio, Inc. and
referred to in the Original Report as “Private Adaptin”), as of and for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 are set forth in Exhibit 99.1 and incorporated herein by

reference.

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information of Private Adaptin and Unite Acquisition 1 Corp. (“Unite Acquisition”) as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2024 is set forth in Exhibit 99.2 and incorporated herein by reference.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Private Adaptin as of December 31, 2024 is set forth in Exhibit 99.3 and incorporated herein by reference.
Item 9.01 Financial Statement and Exhibits.

(a) Financial statements of businesses acquired.

The audited financial statements of Private Adaptin as of and for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 are set forth in Exhibit 99.1 and incorporated herein by
reference.

(b) The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2024 of Private Adaptin and Unite Acquisition is set forth in
Exhibit 99.2 and incorporated herein by reference.

(d) Exhibits.

Exhibit No. Description

99.1 Audited Financial Statements of Adaptin Bio Operating Corporation (formerly Adaptin Bio, Inc.) as of and for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023.
99.2 Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Information.

99.3 Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

104 Cover Page Interactive Data File (embedded within the Inline XBRL document).



https://content.equisolve.net/adaptinbio/sec/0001213900-25-031875/for_pdf/ea023810201ex99-1_adaptin.htm
https://content.equisolve.net/adaptinbio/sec/0001213900-25-031875/for_pdf/ea023810201ex99-2_adaptin.htm
https://content.equisolve.net/adaptinbio/sec/0001213900-25-031875/for_pdf/ea023810201ex99-3_adaptin.htm

SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned
hereunto duly authorized.

Dated: April 15, 2025 Adaptin Bio, Inc.

By:  /s/ Michael J. Roberts
Michael J. Roberts
President and Chief Executive Officer
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Adaptin Bio Operating Company (formerly Adaptin Bio, Inc.)

Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Adaptin Bio Operating Company (formerly Adaptin Bio, Inc.) (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, and
the related statements of operations, changes in stockholders’ deficit, and cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2024, and the related notes
(collectively referred to as the “financial statements”). In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of
December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2024, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Substantial Doubt Regarding Going Concern

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going concern. As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the
Company has suffered recurring losses from operations and has a net capital deficiency that raise substantial doubt about its ability to continue as a going concern.
Management’s plans in regard to these matters are also described in Note 1. The financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this
uncertainty.

Basis for Opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.
We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) ("PCAOB") and are required to be independent with respect
to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB and in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to
error or fraud. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. As part of our audits we are
required to obtain an understanding of internal control over financial reporting but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.

Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures
that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits also
included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

/s/ WithumSmith+Brown, PC

We have served as Adaptin Bio Operating Company’s auditor since 2023.

East Brunswick, New Jersey

April 15,2025




ADAPTIN BIO OPERATING CORPORATION
(FORMERLY ADAPTIN BIO, INC.)
BALANCE SHEETS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

2024 2023
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 34,085 $ 4,754
Prepaid insurance 11,454 -
Total current assets 45,539 4,754
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Deferred equity issuance costs 193,876 -
Total assets $ 239415 $ 4,754
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable - trade $ 1,361,081 $ 280,337
Accrued expenses 1,049,910 198,599
Notes Payable, net of debt issuance costs - 469,762
Convertible Notes Payable, net of debt issuance costs and discounts 1,248,708 -
Derivative liability arising from convertible notes payable 544,957 -
Accrued interest 134,875 33,615
Total current liabilities 4,339,531 982,313
Total liabilities 4,339,531 982,313
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (see Note 7)
STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT
Common Stock, $0.001 par value, 10,000 shares authorized, 1,505 shares issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2024 and
December 31, 2023 1 1
Additional Paid-in Capital 24,115 24,115
Accumulated deficit (4,124,232) (1,001,675)
Total stockholders' deficit (4,100,116) (977,559)
Total liabilities and stockholders' deficit $ 239,415 $ 4,754

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.




ADAPTIN BIO OPERATING CORPORATION
(FORMERLY ADAPTIN BIO, INC.)
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

OPERATING EXPENSES
Research and development
General and administrative

Total Operating Expenses

LOSS FROM OPERATIONS
Interest Expense
Loss on derivative liabilities

Loss on extinguishment of debt
Total Other Income and Expense

Net loss before provision for income taxes

Provision for income taxes

NET LOSS

NET LOSS PER SHARE
Net loss per common share, basic and diluted

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

2024 2023
1,824,591 $ 510,356
745,294 366,960
2,569,885 877,316
(2,569,885) (877,316)
341,048 104,487
17,087 -
194,537 -
552,672 104,487
(3,122,557) (981,803)
(3,122,557)  $ (981,803)
(2,074.79) $ (655.41)
1,505 1,498




ADAPTIN BIO OPERATING CORPORATION
(FORMERLY ADAPTIN BIO, INC.)

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

Additional Total
Common Stock Paid-In Accumulated Stockholders’
Shares Amount Capital Deficit Deficit
Balance as of December 31, 2022 1,430 $ 10,419 $ (19,872) $ (9,452)
Common stock issued 75 13,189 - 13,189
Other Capital Contributions - 507 - 507
Net loss - - (981,803) (981,803)
Balance as of December 31, 2023 1,505 24,115 (1,001,675) (977,559)
Net loss - - (3,122,557) (3,122,557)
Balance as of December 31, 2024 1,505 $ 24,115 § (4,124232) $ (4,100,116

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.




ADAPTIN BIO OPERATING CORPORATION
(FORMERLY ADAPTIN BIO, INC.)
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

CASH FLOWS USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Issuance of common stock for license agreement
Amortization of debt issuance costs and discounts
Loss on derivative liabilities
Loss on extinguishment of debt
Payment of operating expenses as additional paid-in capital by founders
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable - trade
Accrued expenses
Accrued interest

Net cash used in operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Notes Payable
Proceeds from Convertible Notes Payable
Debt issuance costs
Deferred equity issuance costs
Net cash from financing activities

NET INCREASE IN CASH
Cash - Beginning of Year

CASH - END OF YEAR

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid for income taxes
Cash paid for interest expense

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

2024 2023

$ (3,122,557) (981,803)

- 13,189

239,789 70,872

17,087 -

194,537 -

- 507

(11,454) -

1,080,744 272,935

851,311 196,499

101,260 33,615
(649,283) (394,186)

- 500,000

1,000,000 -
(127,510) (101,110)

(193,876) -

678,614 398,890

29,331 4,704

4,754 50

$ 34,085 4,754

$ - -

$ - -




ADAPTIN BIO OPERATING CORPORATION
(FORMERLY ADAPTIN BIO, INC.)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 1 NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Adaptin Bio Operating Corporation, a Delaware corporation, was founded as Centaur Bio, Inc. in 2021 and changed its name in 2024 to Adaptin Bio, Inc. and then
again in 2025 to Adaptin Bio Operating Corporation (the “Company”). The Company is dedicated to the development and commercialization of products utilizing
novel technology that enhances the delivery of drugs and other compounds to the brain and other tissues for a variety of indications. The Company’s novel technology
was originally developed by researchers in the Department of Neurosurgery at Duke University and licensed by the Company in 2023. (See Note 10).

For many drugs and diagnostic agents, no readily available technology permits effective delivery of a broad range of difficult-to-deliver drugs to specific areas of the
body. The Company’s technology is engineered to facilitate the transport of therapeutics to tissues of interest, including the brain, potentially generating improved
treatments for solid tumors and central nervous system (“CNS”) disorders.

The first application of the Company’s precision medicine technology is a Brain Bispecific T Cell Engager (“BRiTE”). BRiTE focuses on the transport of difficult-to-
deliver T cell targeting agents across the blood brain barrier, allowing access to the brain. BRIiTE is a translatable method to specifically target malignant glioma using
a tumor-specific, fully human bispecific antibody that redirects patients’ own T cells to recognize and destroy tumor cells. The lead product, APTN-101, a proprietary
EGFRUVIII x CD3 BRITE, has shown the ability to eliminate malignant glioma tumors in a variety of aggressive preclinical orthotopic tumor models and the Company
intends to complete IND-enabling pre-clinical studies and initiate the first-in-human studies in 2025.

GOING CONCERN

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which contemplates the realization of assets and satisfaction of liabilities in the
normal course of business. As of December 31, 2024, the Company had cash on hand of $34,085 and an accumulated deficit of approximately $4.1 million. The
Company intends to continue the conduct of significant development activities that began in 2023 which, together with expenses incurred for general and
administrative expenses, are expected to result in continuing operating losses for the foreseeable future. The amount of future losses and when, if ever, the Company
will achieve profitability are uncertain. The Company’s ability to achieve profitability will depend, among other things, on successfully completing clinical studies,
obtaining requisite regulatory approvals, establishing appropriate pricing for its product with payers, and raising sufficient funds to finance the Company’s activities.
No assurance can be given that the Company’s clinical development efforts will be successful, that regulatory approvals will be obtained, or that the Company will be
able to achieve appropriate pricing and market access or that profitability, if achieved, can be sustained. These matters raise substantial doubt about the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. The financial statements do not include any adjustments related to the outcome of this uncertainty.

Management has evaluated the Company’s operating plan against its existing cash and determined that the Company expects to be unable to support its operations and
fund its obligations for the next twelve months from the date of issuance of these financial statements. The Company’s ability to execute its operating plan depends on
the Company’s ability to obtain additional funding through equity offerings and debt financings. The Company plans to continue to fund its losses from operations
through cash and cash equivalents on hand, as well as through future equity offerings, debt financings, or other third-party funding. There can be no assurance that
additional funds will be available when needed from any source or, if available, will be available on terms that are acceptable to the Company. Even if the Company
raises additional capital, it may also be required to modify, delay or abandon some of its plans which could have a material adverse effect on the business, operating
results and financial condition and its ability to achieve its intended business objectives. Any of these actions could materially harm the business, results of operations
and future prospects.




ADAPTIN BIO OPERATING CORPORATION
(FORMERLY ADAPTIN BIO, INC.)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements of the Company have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (“GAAP”). Any reference in these notes to applicable guidance is meant to refer to the authoritative GAAP as found in the Accounting Standards
Codification (“ASC”) and Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”). These financial statements are presented in
U.S. Dollars as that is the Company’s functional currency.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amount of expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Significant estimates and assumptions reflected in the financial statements relate to and include, but are not limited to, the fair value of common stock and other
assumptions used to measure share-based consideration transferred for acquired assets under the Duke License (See Note 7 and Note 10), prepaid expenses and
accrued liabilities that are measured based on progress toward completion of research and development projects, and the fair value of derivative liabilities.

Future events and their effects cannot be predicted with certainty; accordingly, accounting estimates require the exercise of judgment. Accounting estimates used in the
preparation of these financial statements change as new events occur, as more experience is acquired, as additional information is obtained and as the operating
environment changes.

Segments

Operating segments are identified as components of an enterprise about which separate discrete financial information is available for evaluation by the chief operating
decision-maker (“CODM?”) in making decisions regarding resource allocation and assessing performance. The Company views its operations and manages its business
as a single segment, which seeks to develop and commercialize products by utilizing novel technology that enhances the delivery of drugs and other compounds to the
brain and other tissues for a variety of indications. The accounting policies of the segment are the same as those described in the summary of significant accounting
policies. The CODM, who is the Company’s chief executive officer, utilizes the Company’s financial information on an aggregate basis for purposes of making
operating decisions, allocating resources and assessing financial performance, as well as for making strategic operations decisions and managing the organization.
The CODM is not regularly provided with disaggregated actual expense information, other than the actual expense information included in the statements of
operations. The measure of segment assets is reported on the balance sheet as total assets. The Company has not yet generated any revenue from product sales.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of 90 days or less on the date of purchase to be cash equivalents. The carrying value of
cash and cash equivalents approximates fair value due to the short-term nature of these items.

Currently, all cash is deposited in one financial institution. The balances are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”) up to certain limits. In the
event there is cash in the bank, it may, at times, exceed FDIC insurable limits. Any loss incurred or a lack of access to such funds could have a significant adverse

impact on the Company’s financial position.

Deferred Equity Issuance Costs

Deferred equity issuance costs represent amounts paid for legal, accounting, consulting, and other offering expenses in conjunction with an anticipated future raise of
additional capital. These costs are netted against additional paid-in capital as a cost of the equity issuance upon closing of the respective equity placement. During the
year ended December 31, 2024, $193,876 of deferred equity issuance costs were recorded.

Derivative Liability

The Company does not use derivative instruments to hedge exposures to cash flow, market, or foreign currency risks. The Company analyzes all financial instruments,
including its convertible debt under the FASB ASC Topic No. 815 Derivatives and Hedging (“ASC 815”) to determine if such instruments contain features that qualify
as embedded derivatives. The accounting treatment of derivative financial instruments requires that the Company record bifurcated embedded conversion features and
any related freestanding instruments at their fair values as of the inception date of the agreement and at fair value as of each subsequent balance sheet date. Any
increase or decrease in the fair value would be recorded in the results of operations within other income/expense as change in fair value of derivative liabilities. The
classification of derivative instruments, including whether such instruments should be recorded as liabilities or as equity, is reassessed at the end of each reporting
period.




ADAPTIN BIO OPERATING CORPORATION
(FORMERLY ADAPTIN BIO, INC.)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

Upon conversion or repayment of a debt or equity instrument in exchange for equity shares, where the embedded conversion feature has been bifurcated and accounted
for as a derivative liability (generally convertible debt), the Company would record the equity shares at fair value on the date of conversion, relieve the carrying value
of all related debt, derivative liabilities (after marking them to fair value), and unamortized debt discounts, and recognize a net gain or loss on debt extinguishment, if
any.

Accrued Expense
Accrued expenses consist primarily of research and development, legal, accounting, consulting and license-related fees.
Research and Development

Research and development costs are charged to expense as costs are incurred in performing research and development activities. To date, the Company’s research and
development costs consist primarily of costs related to obtaining the license to its technology (see Notes 1 and 10) and conducting pre-clinical IND-enabling activities.
It is anticipated that additional expenses in future periods for both pre-clinical and clinical activities will consist primarily of fees paid to contract research
organizations (“CROs”) and to contract manufacturing organizations (“CMOs”).

Research and development expenses include direct costs associated with pre-clinical activities and will, in future periods, include costs associated the Company’s
planned clinical trials including CRO fees, direct CMO costs for the formulation and packaging of trial material, as well as investigator and patient related costs at sites
at which the Company’s clinical trials will be conducted. Direct costs associated with the Company’s CROs and CMOs are generally payable on a time and materials
basis, or when milestones are achieved. The invoicing from third-party vendors can be for work performed on a time and material basis or reflecting milestones
outlined in the initial contract for services and may not reflect actual work performed as of a specific measurement date. The Company records expenses for its pre-
clinical and clinical activities performed by third parties based upon estimates of the percentage of work completed of the total work over the life of the individual
study in accordance with agreements established with the third-party vendors. The Company determines the estimates through discussions with development
personnel, third-party vendors as to the progress or stage of completion of trials or services and the agreed upon fee to be paid for such services based on facts and
circumstances known to the Company as of each balance sheet date. The actual costs and timing of clinical trials are highly uncertain, subject to risks and may change
depending upon a number of factors, including the Company’s clinical development plan. If the actual timing of the performance of services of the level of effort
varies from the estimate, the Company will adjust the accrual accordingly. If the receipt of invoices is in advance of estimated work performed, the Company will
record a prepaid expense as of the measurement date.

Research and development expenses also include the cost of in-process research and development (“IPR&D”) assets purchased in an asset acquisition transaction.
IPR&D assets are expensed unless the assets acquired are deemed to have an alternative future use, provided that the acquired assets did not also include processes or
activities that would constitute a business as defined under GAAP, the technology has not received regulatory approval for marketing and, absent obtaining such
approval, has no established alternative future use. Acquired IPR&D payments are immediately expensed in the period in which they are incurred and include upfront
payments, as well as subsequent pre-commercial milestone payments. Research and development costs after the acquisition are expensed as incurred. The costs
associated with maintaining the patents after the acquisition are the responsibility of the Company and will be expensed as incurred as a general and administrative
expense.
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ADAPTIN BIO OPERATING CORPORATION
(FORMERLY ADAPTIN BIO, INC.)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

Income Taxes

Deferred income taxes are provided on temporary differences between financial statement and income tax reporting. Temporary differences are differences between
the amounts of assets and liabilities reported for financial statement and income tax purposes.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for temporary differences that will be deductible in future years’ tax returns and for operating loss and tax credit carryforwards.
Deferred tax assets are recognized only if it is more likely than not that a tax position will be realized or sustained upon examination by the relevant taxing authority. A
tax position that meets the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold is initially and subsequently measured as the largest amount of tax benefit that has a greater than
50% likelihood of being realized upon settlement with a taxing authority that has full knowledge of all relevant information.

Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance if it is deemed more likely than not that some or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. Deferred
tax liabilities are recognized for temporary differences that will be taxable in future years.

Net Loss per Share

Basic net loss per common share is calculated by dividing net loss by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding for the period, without
consideration for potentially dilutive securities. For the periods presented, basic and diluted net loss per common share are identical as the Company has incurred
losses for both periods. While the Company has entered into convertible debt agreements during 2024 that are potentially dilutive securities, the number of shares

available under a conversion cannot be determined until a Qualified Offering occurs as defined in the debt agreements (See Note 5 and Note 6).

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

ASC Topic 820 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements.

Included in the ASC Topic 820 framework is a three level valuation inputs hierarchy with Level 1 being inputs and transactions that can be effectively fully observed
by market participants spanning to Level 3 where estimates are unobservable by market participants outside of the Company and must be estimated using assumptions
developed by the Company. The Company discloses the lowest level input significant to each category of asset or liability valued within the scope of ASC Topic 820
and the valuation method as exchange, income or use. The Company uses inputs which are as observable as possible and the methods most applicable to the specific
situation of each company or valued item.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument might be adversely affected by a change in the interest rates. The Company’s outstanding convertible
notes payable issued in 2024 have fixed interest rates. Therefore the Company is exposed to interest rate risk in that they could not benefit from a decrease in market
interest rates. In seeking to minimize the risks from interest rate fluctuations, the Company manages exposure through its normal operating and financing activities.




ADAPTIN BIO OPERATING CORPORATION
(FORMERLY ADAPTIN BIO, INC.)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In August 2020, the FASB issued ASU 2020-06, “Debt—Debt with Conversion and Other Options” (Subtopic 470-20) and “Derivatives and Hedging—Contracts in
Entity’s Own Equity” (Subtopic 815-40) (“ASU 2020-06”). This update amends the guidance on convertible instruments and the derivatives scope exception for
contracts in an entity’s own equity and improves and amends the related EPS guidance for both Subtopics. The Company adopted ASU 2020-06 on January 1, 2024
and that adoption had no material effect on the financial statements of the Company.

In November 2023, the FASB issued ASU 2023-07, “Improvements to Reportable Segment Disclosures” (“ASU 2023-07"), effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2023, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024. Early adoption is permitted. The Company adopted ASU 2023-07 on
January 1, 2024. While the Company operates as a single segment, additional disclosures were required in order to comply with the provisions of ASU 2023-07.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2023, the FASB issued ASU 2023-09, “Income Taxes (Topic 740): Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures” (“ASU 2023-09). The amendments in this
update require that public business entities on an annual basis (1) disclose specific categories in the rate reconciliation and (2) provide additional information for
reconciling items that meet a quantitative threshold (if the effect of those reconciling items is equal to or greater than 5% of the amount computed by multiplying
pretax income or loss by the applicable statutory income tax rate). The amendments also require entities on an annual basis to disclose disaggregated amounts of
income taxes paid. ASU 2023-09 is effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2024. Early adoption is permitted for annual financial statements that
have not yet been issued or made available for issuance. The Company is evaluating the effect of adopting this new accounting guidance on its financial statements but
does not intend to early adopt. The Company does not currently believe that adoption will have a material impact on its financial statements.

The Company has also considered other recent accounting pronouncements and concluded that they are either not applicable to the business or that the effect is not
expected to be material to the financial statements as a result of future adoption.

Significant Risks and Uncertainties

The Company is subject to challenges and risks specific to its business and its ability to execute on its strategy, as well as risks and uncertainties common to companies
in the pharmaceutical industry, including, without limitation, risks and uncertainties associated with: obtaining regulatory approval of its product candidate; delays or
problems in the supply of its study drug or failure to comply with manufacturing regulations; identifying, acquiring or in-licensing product candidates; pharmaceutical
product development and the inherent uncertainty of clinical success; and the challenges of protecting and enhancing its intellectual property rights; and complying
with applicable regulatory requirements.

Further, the Company may be impacted by general economic, political, and market conditions, including overall fluctuations in the financial markets in the U.S. and
abroad.

12




ADAPTIN BIO OPERATING CORPORATION
(FORMERLY ADAPTIN BIO, INC.)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 3 FAIR VALUE
FASB ASC 820 - Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. FASB ASC 820 requires disclosures about the fair value of all financial instruments, whether
or not recognized, for financial statement purposes. Disclosures about the fair value of financial instruments are based on pertinent information available to the
Company on December 31, 2024. Accordingly, the estimates presented in these financial statements are not necessarily indicative of the amounts that could be realized
on disposition of the financial instruments. FASB ASC 820 specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques based on whether the inputs to those valuation techniques are
observable or unobservable. Observable inputs reflect market data obtained from independent sources, while unobservable inputs reflect market assumptions. The
hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurement) and the lowest priority to
unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurement).
The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:
Level 1:
Inputs are unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities available at the measurement date.

Level 2:

Inputs are unadjusted quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets and liabilities in markets that are not
active, inputs other than quoted prices that are observable, and inputs derived from or corroborated by observable market data.

Level 3:

Inputs are unobservable inputs which reflect the reporting entity’s own assumptions on what assumptions the market participants would use in pricing the asset or
liability based on the best available information.

The carrying amounts reported in the balance sheets for cash, prepaid expenses, accounts payable, accrued liabilities, notes payable and accrued interest approximate
their fair market value based on the short-term maturity of these instruments.
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Liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis include bifurcated embedded redemption features in convertible debt (see Note 5 and Note 6) that did not exist at
December 31, 2023. The following table is as of December 31, 2024:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Derivative Liabilities $ -8 -3 544957 $ 544,957
A roll forward of the Level 3 valuation financial instrument is as follows:
For the
year ended
December 31,

2024
Balance at beginning of year $ =
Initial valuation of derivative liabilities for debt conversion 333,333
Derivative liability established upon debt extinguishment 194,537
Change in fair value 17,087
Balance at end of year $ 544,957

Given the short-term maturities of these debts, in order to determine the fair value of the embedded derivative within the Exchange Notes (See Note 5) and the 2024
Convertible Debt (See Note 6), the intrinsic value of the conversion feature would be used based on the Company’s estimate of the timing and terms of a Qualified
Offering, which is a Level 3 input in the fair value hierarchy. Upon execution of an engagement letter related to the planned merger and financing (See Note 12), the
Company was able to utilize a more definitive pricing, capital stock structure and an updated estimate of the timing of a Qualified Offering, which are Level 3 inputs
in the fair value hierarchy, to (a) initially evaluate the fair value of the Exchange Redemption Feature (defined below in Note 5) upon the 2023 Senior Debt
Modification (defined below) as having a fair value of $194,537, and (b) reevaluate the previously determined fair value of the 2024 Redemption Feature (defined
below in Note 6) and Exchange Redemption Feature (defined below in Note 5) as having a fair value of $350,420 as of December 31, 2024.

ASC 825-10 “Financial Instruments” allows entities to voluntarily choose to measure certain financial assets and liabilities at fair value (fair value option). The fair
value option may be elected on an instrument-by-instrument basis and is irrevocable unless a new election date occurs. If the fair value option is elected for an
instrument, unrealized gains and losses for that instrument should be reported in earnings at each subsequent reporting date. The Company did not elect to apply the
fair value option to any outstanding debt instruments.

NOTE 4 ACCRUED EXPENSES

Accrued expenses are composed of the following as of December 31, 2024 and 2023:

2024 2023

Accrued professional fees $ 16,200 $ 3,596
Accrued consulting fees 18,392 3,604
Accrued legal fees 46,888 629
Accrued fees of license agreement - 163,565
Accrued research and development 968,130 26,905
Accrued franchise taxes 300 300

$ 1,049910 $ 198,599
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NOTE 5 NOTES PAYABLE

In April 2023, the Company entered into Securities Purchase Agreements with accredited investors that provide for an aggregate of up to $500,000, 10% secured
promissory notes payable to the investors with a term of twelve months from the issuance date (or prepayable in the event of a Qualified Offering) (the “2023 Senior
Debt”). A Qualified Offering is defined under these agreements as the closing of the first offering (public or private) by the Company, after the original issue date of
the 2023 Senior Debt, of its Common Stock or Common Stock Equivalents with gross proceeds to the Company (before underwriter, placement agent or broker
discounts and commissions and expenses of the offering) of $5,000,000 or more. Additionally, the Securities Purchase Agreements provide the buyers be issued
warrants, exercisable beginning on the closing of a Qualified Offering. The note holders will be issued warrants to purchase up to a number of shares of Common
Stock equal to fifty percent (50%) of the number of shares of Common Stock that the principal amount of the 2023 Senior Debt would purchase at the Qualified
Offering price. These warrants have an exercise price equal to the Qualified Offering price and have a term of five years from the closing of a Qualified Offering. As of
December 31, 2024, the Company has issued an aggregate of $500,000 in 2023 Senior Debt. In addition, the Company incurred debt issuance costs of $101,110 which
were amortized over the life of the loans with such amortization recorded as interest expense. As of December 31, 2024, all debt issuance costs are fully amortized.
The notes were issued with original maturity dates ranging from April to September 2024. As the notes remain unpaid as of December 31, 2024, the Company
continued to accrue interest on these notes after the maturity dates. Interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2024 was $80,235, including $49,997 of interest
expense and $30,238 of amortization of debt issuance costs.

2023 Senior Debt Modification

In December 2024, the Company entered into Note Exchange Agreements with the holders of the 2023 Senior Debt whereby these 10% secured promissory notes
payable to holders with a term of twelve months from the issuance date were cancelled and exchanged for the Company’s 10% Secured Convertible Promissory Notes
(the “Exchange Notes”). The Exchange Notes were issued in the aggregate principal amount of $500,000 and provide that, upon the closing of a Qualified Offering,
the outstanding principal amount, together with all accrued but unpaid interest, at the date of conversion shall automatically be converted (the “Exchange Redemption
Feature”) into shares of common stock of the Company or its parent (the “Conversion Shares”) at a conversion price equal to 75% of the gross offering price to the
investors in the Qualified Offering (the “Conversion Price”). A Qualified Offering is defined in the Exchange Notes as the closing of the first offering (public or
private) by the Company or its Parent after the Original Issue Date of the Company’s or the Parent’s common stock with gross proceeds to the Company or its Parent
(before underwriter, placement agent or broker discounts and commissions and expenses of the offering) of $5,000,000 or more, including the aggregate principal
amount of, together with all accrued but unpaid interest on, the Exchange Notes and the other notes that will convert thereupon. The Company determined that the
Exchange Redemption Feature should be accounted for as a derivative liability with a fair value of $194,537 on the date of the Note Exchange Agreement. See Note 3
— Fair Value for additional details regarding the fair value of the Exchange Redemption Feature.
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Additionally, as contemplated in connection with the issuance of the 2023 Senior Debt, the noteholders will retain the right to be issued the warrants.

Lastly, as an inducement to enter into the Note Exchange Agreements, the holders were issued additional warrants to purchase up to a number of shares of Common
Stock equal to fifty percent (50%) of the number of shares of Common Stock that the principal amount of the notes issued to the initial Holder would purchase at the
Conversion Price. The exercise price of one share of Common Stock under this warrant is equal to the Conversion Price. These warrants are exercisable beginning on
the closing of a Qualified Offering and have a term of five years from the closing of a Qualified Offering.

At issuance, these warrants are generally not a liability within the scope of ASC 480 if it is within the reporting entity’s control to decide whether it will enter into a
Qualified Offering and, if so, at what terms. Accordingly, the Company has determined that there will be no accounting recognition of these warrants until the terms of
the Qualified Offering are determined and the Qualified Offering has closed. Once the terms of the Qualified Offering are known, the Company will be able to
estimate the value and begin to evaluate the accounting implications (liability vs equity), however, that will not become final until the Qualified Offering closes.

The Company determined that the 2023 Senior Debt Modification should be accounted for as an extinguishment. The carrying value of the debt (principal and accrued
interest) was compared to the reacquisition price (equivalent principal, equivalent accrued interest, and an embedded redemption feature with a fair value of $194,537)
which resulted in a loss on extinguishment of $194,537 for the year ended December 31, 2024. See Note 3 — Fair Value additional details regarding the fair value of
the Exchange Redemption Feature. As of December 31, 2024, the Exchange Notes total $500,000 and the Company has accrued interest totaling $83,613.

NOTE 6 CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE

In February 2024, the Company entered into Securities Purchase Agreements with certain accredited investors that provide for an aggregate of up to $1,000,000, 10%
secured subordinated convertible promissory notes payable to investors with a term of twelve months from the issuance date (the “2024 Convertible Debt”).
Additionally, the Securities Purchase Agreements provide that, upon a Qualified Offering, the debt together with all accrued but unpaid interest at the date of
conversion shall automatically be converted into shares of the Company’s common stock (the “Conversion Shares”) at a conversion price equal to 75% of the gross
offering price to the investors in the Qualified Offering. A Qualified Offering is defined under these agreements as the closing of the first offering (public or private) by
the Company, after the original issue date of the 2024 Convertible Debt, of its Common Stock or Common Stock Equivalents with gross proceeds to the Company
(before underwriter, placement agent or broker discounts and commissions and expenses of the offering) of $5,000,000 or more inclusive of the 2023 Senior Debt of
$500,000 and the 2024 Convertible Debt of $1.0 million, plus the related accrued interest. As of December 31, 2024, the Company had issued an aggregate of
$1,000,000 in 2024 Convertible Debt with maturities ranging from March 2025 to September 2025. In addition, the Company incurred debt issuance costs of
approximately $127,510 which are being amortized over the life of the loans with such amortization recorded as interest expense. As of December 31, 2024, the 2024
Convertible Debt totals $748,708, net of unamortized debt issuance costs and discounts of $251,292. The Company has accrued interest totaling $51,262. Interest
expense for the year ended December 31, 2024 was $260,813, including $51,262 of interest expense, $58,695 of amortization of debt issuance costs and $150,856 of
amortization of discounts related to the derivative liability.
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Derivative Liability

The Company’s 2024 Convertible Debt, together with all accrued but unpaid interest at the date of conversion, shall automatically be converted into shares of the
Company’s common stock (the “Conversion Shares”) at a conversion price equal to 75% of the gross offering price to the investors in the Qualified Offering. The
Company evaluated this embedded feature (the “2024 Note Redemption Feature”) under the guidance of ASC 815 and determined that it required bifurcation of the
embedded derivative liability from the underlying debt at its fair value. While the number of common shares to be issued under these agreements is undetermined, this
feature results in a fixed monetary amount of the settlement with a variable number of Conversion Shares issued. As the price per share under a Qualified Offering is
unknown and the number of shares to be issued is variable, the resulting intrinsic value would be the same regardless of the Conversion Price. Accounting standards
require that the Company recognize the derivative as a liability, based on its underlying instrument, in the balance sheet and measure the instrument at fair value at
each balance sheet date. A change in the market value of the financial instrument would be recognized as a gain or loss in the results of operations in the period of
change. The Company determined that the 2024 Note Redemption Feature should be accounted for as a derivative liability with an initial fair value of $333,333 on the
date of issuance of the 2024 Convertible Debt. Additionally, the Company subsequently recorded a loss on the derivative liability of $17,087 increasing its fair value to
$350,420. See Note 3 — Fair Value — for additional details regarding the 2024 Note Redemption Feature.

2024 Convertible Debt Amendment

At issuance, the 2024 Convertible Debt was convertible into Conversion Shares as more fully detailed above. With the December 2024 agreement of the holders of the
2024 Convertible Debt, the Company amended the 2024 Convertible Debt to be convertible into shares of common stock of either the Company or any entity that
directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, controls the Company (the “2024 Note Amendment”). The terms of the conversion remain as detailed above.
A “Qualified Offering” , as amended, means the closing of the first offering (public or private) by the Company or its parent after the original issue date of the
Company’s or its parent’s common stock with gross proceeds to the Company or its parent (before underwriter, placement agent or broker discounts and commissions
and expenses of the offering) of $5,000,000 or more inclusive of the 2023 Senior Debt of $500,000 and the 2024 Convertible Debt of $1.0 million, and the related
accrued interest. The Company determined that the 2024 Note Amendment should be accounted for as a debt modification (a continuation of the existing indebtedness)
such that the Company continued to accrue interest and amortize any debt discount over the remaining term of the 2024 Convertible Debt.
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NOTE 7 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Litigation

While there is currently no ongoing litigation, the Company may, from time to time, be involved in various legal matters that arise in the ordinary course of business.
Should matters arise, management will then make a determination as to the ultimate disposition of these matters and measure if it could have a material adverse effect
on the Company’s financial position, results of operations or liquidity.

License Agreement

In January 2023, the Company entered into a patent license agreement with Duke University and the National Cancer Institute, under the agency of the U.S.
Department of Health and Human Services (the “Duke License”) for an exclusive, worldwide, sub-licensable license to the technology more fully described in Note 1
and Note 10. The Duke License was amended in August 2024 to include improvements within the definitions of patent rights and technical information. As a
component of the Duke License, the Company agreed to make payments based on clinical and commercial milestones and continuing royalty payments on any sales
made after approval by regulatory authorities. These milestones include initiation of Phase II or Phase III clinical trials, submission of applications for market approval
in multiple jurisdictions including the US, EU and Japan and the initiation of post-approval commercial sales in the same jurisdictions. Based on an assumption that all
milestones related to the current development program are met during the course of the Duke License, these milestone payments would total approximately $11.7
million. As of December 31, 2024, the Company has not met any milestones as defined in the agreement and, accordingly, has recorded no expense or liability related
to such payments.

The Company also agreed to pay royalties equal to low- to mid- single digit percentages of annual net sales on a country-by-country and product-by-product basis
subject to downward adjustment to low single digit percentages of our net annual sales in the event there is no valid claim of a patent for the product, with minimum
annual royalty levels established. The Company also must pay Duke low to mid-double digit percentages of any sublicensing fees as set forth in the Duke License. The
Company has not recorded and does not owe any royalties or sublicensing fees for the year ended December 31, 2024.

NOTE 8 INCOME TAXES

The Company believes that there are no uncertain tax positions for which a liability (unrecognized tax benefit) should be recognized. The federal and state income tax
returns of the Company are subject to examination by the Internal Revenue Service and state taxing authorities, generally for three years after they were filed.

The Company has incurred net operating losses (“NOL”) for U.S. tax purposes. As of December 31, 2024, the Company has approximately $1.2 million related to U.S.

and State NOLs that may be carried forward and are available to reduce future taxable income. At December 31, 2023, the U.S. and State NOLs were approximately
$0.5 million.
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The NOL carryforwards are subject to review and possible adjustment by the U.S. and state tax authorities. NOL carryforwards may become subject to an annual
limitation in the event of certain cumulative changes in the ownership interest of significant shareholders, as defined under Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code.
This could limit the amount of NOLs that the Company can utilize annually to offset future taxable income or tax liabilities. As of December 31, 2024, the Company
has not performed such an analysis evaluating the potential limitation of the Company’s net operating loss carryforwards due to the “change in ownership” provisions
as defined under Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code. Subsequent ownership changes and proposed future changes to tax rules in respect of the utilization of
losses carried forward may further affect the limitation in future years.

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
amounts used for income tax purposes. The net deferred tax assets have not been recognized in these financial statements because the criteria for recognition of these
assets were not met. Accordingly, the Company has recorded a valuation allowance against its deferred tax assets for the year ended December 31, 2023 of $228,156
and subsequently increased that valuation allowance by $585,356 to $813,512 for the year ended December 31, 2024 related to the increase in the net operating loss
carryforwards and temporary timing differences as the realization of the deferred tax assets cannot occur until there is future taxable income, the certainty of which
cannot be determined.

The components of the deferred tax assets and the valuation allowance are shown below. The state carryforwards are shown net of federal tax benefit.

2024 2023
Deferred tax assets:
Net operating loss carryforward - Federal $ 251,711  $ 106,393
Net operating loss carryforward - State 21,306 9,005
Timing difference - §174 R&D costs, net of amortization 472,425 112,758
Timing difference - Accrued Consulting 68,071 -
Total deferred tax assets 813,512 228,156
Less-Valuation allowance (813,512) (228,156)
$ - $ -

The reasons for the difference between actual income tax benefit and the amount computed by applying the statutory federal income tax rate to the losses before
income tax benefit are as follows:

2024 2023
Rate Reconciliation:
Statutory federal rate 21.00% 21.00%
Statutory state rate (net of federal benefit) 1.78% 1.78%
Convertible Notes 3.72%
Effect of increase in valuation allowance -26.49% -22.78%
Effective tax rate 0.00% 0.00%

19




ADAPTIN BIO OPERATING CORPORATION
(FORMERLY ADAPTIN BIO, INC.)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 9 STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT
Common Stock

The Company’s Certificate of Incorporation provides the authority to issue common stock, fully voting and participating, with a $0.001 par value, of which 10,000
shares were authorized. In 2021, a total of 1,430 shares were issued to the founding shareholders.

In February 2023, 75 shares were issued to Duke University pursuant to the Duke License (see Note 7). A total of 1,505 shares were outstanding as of December 31,
2023 and December 31, 2024.

NOTE 10 LICENSE AGREEMENT

In January 2023, the Company entered into the Duke License for an exclusive, worldwide, sub-licensable license to the technology more fully described in Note 1 and
Note 7. Under the terms of this agreement, the Company issued a five percent (5%) common stock ownership interest, or 75 common shares, in the Company at a
value of $175.86 per share.

The estimated fair value of the Company’s common stock was determined by a third-party independent valuation firm in accordance with the guidelines outlined in the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants Practice Aid, “Valuation of Privately-Held-Company Equity Securities Issued as Compensation”. These valuations
took into account numerous factors, including developments at the Company and market conditions.

Consistent with FASB ASC 820-10-35-24, if multiple valuation techniques are used to measure fair value, the results (respective indications of fair value) should be
evaluated and weighted, as appropriate, considering the reasonableness of the range indicated by those results. A fair value measurement is the point within that range
that is most representative of fair value in the circumstances. The February 2, 2023 valuation utilized multiple valuation techniques that considered a set of discrete
potential liquidity scenarios for the Company, the value common stock would receive in each scenario, and the time required and risk inherent in achieving those
values. The third-party valuation expert examined the following scenarios for the Company: (i) the net assets of the Company or the Asset Approach; (ii) a recently
executed term sheet related to a proposed merger transaction and capital raise or the Market Approach; and (iii) dissolution or the failure scenario. The Asset Approach
was assumed to be appropriate given the Company’s limited operations and expenditures to date as of the valuation date. The Asset Approach was weighted at 80%
assuming continued operations as the funding proposed in the term sheet is non-binding and the Company has no assurance such funding will occur. The Market
Approach utilized a back-solve methodology to determine the value of the common stock based on the terms outlined in the term sheet assuming the contemplated
transaction is consummated and was weighted at 10% as there is limited or no assurance such transaction will be completed. Finally, the failure scenario was weighted
at 10% assuming that the Company is unable to obtain suitable financing and would discontinue operations.
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In accordance with ASC 805, the license agreement was evaluated and the Company concluded that substantially all of the value acquired is concentrated in a group of
similar identifiable IPR&D assets. Accordingly, it has been accounted for as an asset acquisition as the technology transferred to the Company had not yet received
regulatory approval and the IPR&D did not have an alternative use. The Company recorded research and development expense related to the issuance of the common
stock of $13,189 during the year ended December 31, 2023. In addition, the Company agreed to reimburse the licensor for all patent related costs previously incurred
for the technology prior to the license execution date. The total of these costs was approximately $327,000. The Company expensed these costs in their entirety upon
execution of the Duke License as a research and development expense as they were deemed to be part of the acquisition price of the IPR&D. Reimbursement for these
costs will be made in four equal installments with the first two payments having been made in 2023 and an additional payment in 2024. At December 31, 2024, the
Company had a remaining liability of $81,782 included in accounts payable on the balance sheet. The Company further agreed to make payments based on clinical and
commercial milestones and continuing royalty payments on any sales made after approval by regulatory authorities (See Note 7).

NOTE 11 RELATED PARTIES
Dr. Michael Roberts and Dr. Simon Pedder are both shareholders of the Company and the only members of the Company’s Board of Directors.

Dr. Roberts currently owns 1,000 shares of the common stock of the Company, or 66% of outstanding shares. During the year ended December, 31, 2023, Dr. Roberts
paid $507 of expenses on behalf of the Company. During the year ended December 31, 2024, Dr. Roberts paid no such expenses. Additionally, during the year ended
December 31, 2023, the Company recorded consulting fees expense for Dr. Roberts of $45,000 and paid him $15,000 with the balance reflected in accounts payable.
During the year ended December 31, 2024, the Company recorded consulting fees expense of $180,000 and paid Dr. Roberts $60,000. At December 31, 2024, the
Company had a balance of $150,000 recorded in accounts payable related to these fees.

Dr. Pedder currently owns 430 shares of the common stock of the Company, or 29% of outstanding shares. During the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2024, Dr.
Pedder made no operating expense payments on behalf of the Company. Additionally, during the year ended December 31, 2023, the Company recorded consulting
fees expense for Dr. Pedder of $30,000 and paid him $10,000 with the balance reflected in accounts payable. During the year ended December 31, 2024, the Company
recorded consulting fees expense of $120,000 and paid Dr. Pedder $40,000. At December 31, 2024, the Company had a balance of $100,000 recorded in accounts
payable related to these fees.
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NOTE 12 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Merger Agreement

On February 11, 2025, Adaptin Acquisition Co., a Delaware corporation formed on January 30, 2025 (“Merger Sub”) and a wholly owned subsidiary of Unite
Acquisition 1 Corp. (“Unite Acquisition”), a public shell company and Delaware corporation formed on March 10, 2022, merged with and into the Company (the
“Merger”). Pursuant to the Merger, the Company was the surviving corporation and became a wholly-owned subsidiary of Unite Acquisition, and all of the outstanding
common stock of the Company was cancelled and exchanged for 3,249,999 shares of Unite Acquisition’s common stock (the “Post-Merger Shares”).

As a result, Unite Acquisition ceased to be a shell company and will continue as a public reporting company under the new name, Adaptin Bio, Inc. (“Public
Adaptin”). Concurrent with the consummation of the Merger, the Company changed its name to “Adaptin Bio Operating Corporation” and will continue its existing
business operations.

The Merger is expected to be accounted for as a reverse recapitalization in accordance with GAAP. Under this method of accounting, Unite Acquisition, which is the
legal acquirer, is treated as the “acquired” company for financial reporting purposes and the Company is treated as the accounting acquirer. This determination was
primarily due to Unite Acquisition being determined to be a shell company in that it did not meet the GAAP definition of a business, did not have more than nominal
assets, and does not have more than nominal operations at the time of the Merger. Accordingly, for accounting purposes, the Merger will be treated as the equivalent of
a capital transaction in which the Company is issuing stock for the net assets of Unite Acquisition. The net assets of Unite Acquisition will be stated at historical cost,
with no goodwill or other intangible assets recorded.

The Offering

On February 11, 2025, concurrent with the Merger, Public Adaptin issued, in a private placement offering (the “Offering”), 1,080,814 Units (the “Initial Closing”), for
an aggregate purchase price of $4,755,582, at a purchase price of $4.40 per Unit, with each Unit consisting of (i) one share of common stock (the “Offering Shares”),
(ii) a warrant representing the right to purchase one share of common stock with an exercise price of $4.40 per share and a term of one year from the final closing of
the Offering (the “A Warrant™), and (iii) a warrant, representing the right to purchase one-half of a share of common stock, with an exercise price of $6.60 per share
and a term of five years from the final closing of the Offering (the “B Warrant,” and together with the A Warrant, the “Warrants™) (such shares of common stock
issuable upon the exercise of the Warrants, the “Warrant Shares”).

The offering period commenced on January 8, 2025 and was scheduled to continue until the later of (i) February 28, 2025, unless extended by Public Adaptin and the
placement agent; (ii) the date on which the maximum offering amount of approximately $8.5 million (the “Maximum Offering”) is sold by the Public Adaptin; or (iii)
on a date mutually agreed upon in writing by Public Adaptin and the placement agent (the “Offering Period”). On February 28, 2025, Public Adaptin and the
placement agent agreed to extend the offering period to March 31, 2025. On March 31, 2025, Public Adaptin issued, in the final closing of the Offering, 319,528 Units
for an aggregate purchase price of $1,405,923.
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In connection with the Offering, the placement agent and/or its sub-agents (a) will be paid at each closing from the Offering proceeds a total cash commission of
10.0% of the aggregate gross purchase price paid by purchasers in the Offering at that closing (the “Cash Fee”), (b) will be paid at each closing from the Offering
proceeds a total non-allocable expense allowance equal to 2.0% of the aggregate gross purchase price paid by purchasers in the Offering at that closing (the “Expense
Allowance”), and (c) will receive (and/or its designees will receive) warrants to purchase a total number of shares of common stock equal to 10.0% of the sum of (i)
the number of Offering Shares included in the Units sold in the Offering at that closing and (ii) the number of shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of the
warrants included in the Units sold in the Offering at that closing, with a term expiring seven years after the final closing date of the Offering and an exercise price of
$4.40 per share (the “Placement Agent Warrants”). Public Adaptin has agreed to pay certain other expenses of the placement agent, including the fees and expenses of
its counsel, in connection with the Offering.

In connection with the Merger, all officers and directors of Public Adaptin and their affiliates and associated entities entered into lock-up agreements with Public
Adaptin for a term ending two years after the closing of the Merger, whereby they have agreed to certain restrictions on the sale or disposition (including pledge) of
Public Adaptin common stock held by (or issuable to) them.

Conversion of Exchange Notes and 2024 Convertible Debt and Issuance of Warrants

At the Initial Closing, the $1,500,000 aggregate principal amount of Exchange Notes and 2024 Convertible Debt, plus accrued interest thereon, automatically
converted into shares of Public Adaptin common stock, at a conversion price of $3.30 per share, or 501,140 shares of Public Adaptin common stock (the “Note
Conversion Shares”), and the holders of the Exchange Notes were issued, pursuant to existing agreements, warrants to purchase up to 132,570 shares of Public Adaptin
common stock at an exercise price of either $3.30 or $4.40 per share and with a term of five years.

Registration Rights Agreement

In connection with the Merger and the Offering, Public Adaptin entered into a registration rights agreement, pursuant to which Public Adaptin will file a registration
statement with the Securities and Exchange Commission within 60 calendar days after the termination of the Offering (subject to a toll period), registering for resale
the following: (a) the Offering Shares; (b) the Warrant Shares; (c) the shares of common stock issued or issuable upon exercise of all other outstanding warrants of
Public Adaptin; (d) the Post-Merger Shares; (f) shares of common stock issued or issuable upon exercise of the Placement Agent Warrants; and (g) other shares of
restricted common stock held by the signatories to the registration rights agreement acquired or issuable in respect of the foregoing shares of common stock by way of
conversion, dividend, stock-split, distribution or exchange, merger, consolidation, recapitalization or reclassification or similar transaction.
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ADAPTIN BIO OPERATING CORPORATION
(FORMERLY ADAPTIN BIO, INC.)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

2025 Equity Incentive Plan

Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, Public Adaptin adopted the 2025 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2025 Plan”), which provides for the issuance of incentive awards of
stock options, restricted stock awards, restricted stock units, stock appreciation rights and performance awards. The 2025 Plan was approved by Public Adaptin’s
shareholders and Board of Directors on February 11, 2025. Prior to the Initial Closing, Public Adaptin’s board of directors reserved a number of shares of common
stock equal to 15% of the shares to be outstanding upon each closing of the Offering, up to a maximum aggregate amount of 15% of the fully diluted shares
outstanding of Public Adaptin following the final closing of the Offering (assuming exercise or conversion of all then-outstanding common stock equivalents), for the
future issuance, at the discretion of the board of directors, of options and other incentive awards to officers, key employees, consultants and directors of Public Adaptin
and its subsidiaries.

The number of shares reserved for issuance under the 2025 Plan will increase automatically on January 1 of each of 2026 through 2035 by the number of shares equal
to the lesser of 4% of the total number of outstanding shares of Public Adaptin’s common stock as of December 31 (calculated on a fully-diluted and as-converted
basis), or a number as may be determined by Public Adaptin’s board of directors.

As of the date of this Report, up to 2,196,390 shares of common stock are reserved under the 2025 Plan. Repricing outstanding stock awards is not permitted without
the approval of Public Adaptin’s stockholders, except for certain proportionate capitalization adjustments as set forth in the 2025 Plan. The 2025 Plan terminates on
February 11, 2035.

Executive Compensation

On February 11, 2025, effective upon the closing of the Merger, Public Adaptin entered into executive employment agreements with three executive officers (each an
“Executive” and collectively, the “Executives”). The agreements include customary non-competition, non-solicitation, and confidentiality covenants; establish the
Executives’ duties and compensation; and provide for their continued employment with Public Adaptin. The initial term of each of the employment agreements
commenced upon the closing of the Merger and continues for terms ranging from two to three years, unless terminated sooner in accordance with the employment
agreement. After the initial term expires, the employment agreements will automatically renew for successive one-year terms unless either Public Adaptin or the
Executive provides written notice of their intent not to renew at least 90 days prior to the expiration of the then-current term.

Public Adaptin has agreed to pay the Executives annual base salaries of $960,000 in the aggregate, discretionary equity grants and awards, and annual discretionary
bonuses based on targeted percentages of each Executive’s base salary.
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ADAPTIN BIO OPERATING CORPORATION
(FORMERLY ADAPTIN BIO, INC.)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

In the event that Public Adaptin issues additional securities, raising gross aggregate funds of $10,000,000 (in one or more transactions), occurring, if at all, within two
years following the Merger (the “Additional Financing Period”), Public Adaptin will grant each Executive options to purchase a number of shares of common stock of
Public Adaptin (the “Anti-Dilution Options”) sufficient to ensure that their respective ownership immediately following the Additional Financing Period, on a fully
diluted basis and assuming the exercise of all outstanding options (whether or not then exercisable) is equal to their respective ownership immediately following the
Merger, as determined on a fully diluted basis and assuming the exercise of all outstanding options (whether or not then exercisable). The per share exercise price of
the Anti-Dilution Options will be equal to the fair market value of a share of Public Adaptin’s common stock on the date of grant, as determined by the board of
directors. The Anti-Dilution Options, if any, will become exercisable in four equal annual installments, in each case subject to the continued employment of each
Executive with Public Adaptin on the date each such vesting milestone is achieved, and will be subject to the terms of Public Adaptin’s equity incentive plan then in
place and a related option grant agreement to be entered between Executive and Public Adaptin.

The employment agreements may be terminated (a) automatically upon the Executive’s death; (b) by Public Adaptin upon disability, for cause or not for cause; or (c)
by the Executive for good reason or no reason; all as defined in the employment agreements.

If the Company terminates the Executive’s employment without cause or if the Executive resigns for good reason, then the Executive will be entitled to separation
benefits, consisting of 12-24 months of then-current base salary and continuation of health insurance coverage for 12-18 months, depending on the individual.

If the Company terminates the Executive’s employment without cause or if the Executive resigns for good reason, in connection with a change in control of the
Company, then the Executive will be entitled to accelerated vesting of all equity awards, in addition to the separation benefits enumerated above.

On February 5, 2025, each of the Company’s Executives agreed to forever waive and discharge any obligation on the part of the Company to pay the consulting fees
incurred and unpaid prior to consummation of the Merger. In the aggregate, the amount of consulting fees that were unpaid and waived under this agreement totaled

approximately $345,900 and $313,850 had been recorded in accounts payable by the Company as of December 31, 2024.

Transactions with Lucius Partners and Related Persons

On February 11, 2025, the sole holder of common stock of Unite Acquisition prior to the Merger, Lucius Partners, retained 3,250,000 shares of Public Adaptin
common stock after the Merger, after agreeing to cancel and retire 1,750,000 shares of Public Adaptin common stock. In connection with the Merger and Offering,
Unite Acquisition terminated the services agreement with Lucius Partners and fully repaid the unsecured promissory note of $275,000 in addition to other accrued
expenses.

Lucius Partners has agreed to provide advisory services to Public Adaptin for two years following the Initial Closing (the “Advisory Period”) and Public Adaptin has
agreed to pay to Lucius Partners a cash fee of $180,000 in advance for the first year of advisory services and a cash fee of $45,000 quarterly in advance for the second
year of advisory services. The Advisory Period can be renewed for additional one-year periods upon written request by Public Adaptin within 60 days prior to the
expiry of any Advisory Period.

Common Stock Issuance

On April 2, 2025, in connection with the execution of a vendor contract, the Company issued 54,348 shares of its common stock. The Company is currently assessing

the accounting treatment of this transaction.
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Exhibit 99.2
UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Defined terms included below that are not otherwise defined in Exhibit 99.2 to this Amendment No. 1 on Form 8-K/A (“Amendment No. 1), which amends the Current Report
on Form 8-K filed by Adaptin Bio, Inc. (formerly Unite Acquisition 1 Corp.) on February 18, 2025 (the “Original Report”), have the same meaning as terms defined and
included in Amendment No. 1 and the Original Report.

Unless the context requires otherwise, references to “Private Adaptin” in this Exhibit 99.2 are to the business and operations of Adaptin Bio, Inc. prior to the Merger,
references to “Unite Acquisition” in this Exhibit 99.2 are to the public company shell, Unite Acquisition 1 Corp. prior to the Merger, references to “Merger Sub” refer to

Adaptin Acquisition Co., a wholly owned subsidiary of Unite Acquisition, prior to the Merger, and references to “Adaptin Bio”, “we,” “us,” “our” and the “Company” in this
Exhibit 99.2 are to the combined and renamed public company following the consummation of the Merger.

Introduction

The following pro forma condensed combined financial information has been prepared in accordance with Article 11 of Regulation S-X, as amended by the final rule,
Release No. 33-10786, “Amendments to the Financial Disclosures about Acquired and Disposed Businesses.” The pro forma combined financial information presents the pro
forma effects of the Merger, the initial closing of the Offering, the final closing of the Offering, and the related material transactions that have occurred, or are probable of
occurring, subsequent to the latest balance sheet date that are material to investors. The Merger, the initial closing of the Offering and the related transactions, as further
described elsewhere in the pro forma financial information, were completed on February 11, 2025 (the “Closing”). The final closing of the Offering was completed on March
31, 2025 (together with the Closing, the “Closings”).

Unite Acquisition was a blank check company incorporated in Delaware in 2022. The business purpose of Unite Acquisition was to seek the acquisition of, or merger
with, an existing company. Since inception, Unite Acquisition has been engaged in organizational efforts and obtaining initial financing. Unite Acquisition was formed as a
vehicle to pursue a business combination.

Private Adaptin was incorporated in Delaware in 2021 and is a biopharmaceutical company pioneering a transformational approach to enhance the transfer of
therapeutics into the brain, facilitating the treatment of brain cancers and other unmet medical conditions. Private Adaptin’s proprietary technology harnesses the human
immune system’s ability to target, recognize, destroy or deliver therapeutics to specific cells, including cancer cells. Its mission is to be the global leader and pioneer of this new
treatment paradigm, integrating recombinant technology, gene therapy and cell therapy to address the challenges of targeting and delivering effective therapies, including to the
brain for cancer and other central nervous system (“CNS”) indications.

Bridge Financings

Private Adaptin raised bridge financing through the offer and sale (a) in 2023 of $500,000 principal amount of its 10% Secured Promissory Notes (the “2023 Bridge
Notes”) (including an obligation to issue five-year warrants to purchase shares of its common stock) and (b) in 2024 of $1,000,000 principal amount of its 10% Secured
Subordinated Convertible Promissory Notes (the “2024 Bridge Notes”), which in each case were sold to a limited number of accredited investors pursuant to Regulation D
under the Securities Act. During December 2024, the 2023 Bridge Notes were exchanged for $500,000 principal amount of the Company’s 10% Secured Convertible
Promissory Notes (the “Exchange Notes”). In connection with the note exchange, the holders of the 2023 Bridge Notes were issued five-year warrants to purchase Private
Adaptin or its parent company’s common stock (the “Exchange Warrants”). The Exchange Notes and the 2024 Bridge Notes are referred to herein as the “Bridge Notes.”

At the initial closing of the Offering (as more fully described below), the $1,500,000 aggregate principal amount of outstanding Bridge Notes, plus accrued interest
thereon, automatically converted into shares of Company common stock, par value $0.0001 per share (“Common Stock™), at a conversion price of $3.30 per share, or 495,417
shares of Common Stock (the “Note Conversion Shares”) (as a result of the accrued interest being computed as of December 31, 2024 for the purposes of the pro forma
financial statements, the number of Note Conversion Shares used for the pro forma financial statements is less than the actual number of Note Conversion Shares issued at
Closing, which includes accrued interest computed through the date of the Closing), and the holders of the 2023 Bridge Notes were issued, pursuant to existing agreements,
warrants to purchase up to 132,570 shares of our Common Stock at an exercise price of either $3.30 or $4.40 per share and with a term of five years, as described above (the
“Pre-Merger Warrants”).

Merger Agreement

On February 11, 2025, Unite Acquisition entered into the Merger Agreement with Merger Sub and Private Adaptin, pursuant to which Merger Sub merged with and
into Private Adaptin, with Private Adaptin continuing as the surviving corporation and as our wholly owned subsidiary.




Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, all of the outstanding capital stock of Private Adaptin was cancelled in exchange for shares of Common Stock, and all of the
outstanding Private Adaptin warrants were assumed by the Company with appropriate adjustments to the per share exercise or conversion price thereof, and otherwise on their
original terms and conditions. The total number of shares of Common Stock issued to Pre-Merger stockholders of Private Adaptin was 3,249,999 shares. As a result of the
Merger, we acquired the business of Private Adaptin and will continue its business operations as a public reporting company.

Prior to the initial closing of the Offering (as more fully described below), Unite Acquisition’s board of directors adopted an equity incentive plan reserving a number
of shares of Common Stock equal to 15% of the shares to be outstanding after completion of the Merger and the final closing of the Offering, on a fully diluted basis (assuming
exercise or conversion of all then-outstanding Common Stock equivalents), for the future issuance, at the discretion of the board of directors, of options and other incentive
awards to officers, key employees, consultants and directors of the Company and its subsidiaries.

The sole holder of Common Stock of Unite Acquisition prior to the Merger, Lucius Partners, retained 3,250,000 shares of Common Stock after the Merger, following
cancellation of 1,750,000 shares of Common Stock. The Merger Agreement contained customary representations and warranties and pre- and post-closing covenants of each
party and customary closing conditions.

As a condition to the Merger, we entered into a Pre-Merger indemnity agreement with Unite Acquisition’s sole officer and director, Nathan P. Pereira, pursuant to
which the Company agreed to indemnify Mr. Pereira for actions taken by him in his official capacity relating to the consideration, approval and consummation of the Merger
and certain related transactions.

The Offering

Immediately following the effective time of the Merger, we issued, in the initial closing of the Offering, 1,080,814 Units, for an aggregate purchase price of
$4,755,581, at a purchase price of $4.40 per Unit, with each Unit consisting of (i) one share of Common Stock, (ii) a warrant representing the right to purchase one share of
Common Stock, exercisable from issuance until one year after the final Closing of the Offering at an exercise price of $4.40 per share (the “A Warrant™), and (iii) a warrant,
representing the right to purchase one-half of a share of Common Stock, exercisable from issuance until five years after the final Closing of the Offering at an exercise price of
$6.60 per whole share (the “B Warrant,” and together with the A Warrant, the “Warrants”) (such shares of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of the Warrants, the
“Warrant Shares”). The private placement offering is referred to herein as the “Offering.”

The offering period commenced on January 8, 2025 and continued until March 31, 2025 (the “Offering Period”). The final day of the Offering Period is referred to as
the “Termination Date”. The initial closing of the Offering occurred immediately following the closing of the Merger. The Company and Laidlaw & Company (UK) Ltd. (the
“Placement Agent”) conducted a final closing of the Offering and issued an additional 319,528 Units, for an aggregate purchase price of $1,405,923, at a purchase price of
$4.40 per Unit, which was completed on the Termination Date.

In connection with the Offering, the Placement Agent (a) was paid at each closing from the Offering proceeds a total cash commission of 10.0% of the aggregate gross
purchase price paid by purchasers in the Offering at that closing (the “Cash Fee”), (b) was paid at each closing from the Offering proceeds a total non-allocable expense
allowance equal to 2.0% of the aggregate gross purchase price paid by purchasers in the Offering at that Closing (the “Expense Allowance”), and (c) will receive (and/or its
designees will receive) warrants to purchase a total number of shares of Common Stock equal to 10.0% of the sum of (i) the number of shares of Common Stock included in the
Units sold in the Offering at that closing and (ii) the number of shares of Common Stock issuable upon exercise of the Warrants included in the Units sold in the Offering at that
closing, with a term expiring seven years after the final closing date and an exercise price of $4.40 per share (the “Placement Agent Warrants”). Any sub-agent of the Placement
Agent that introduces investors to the Offering will be entitled to share in the Cash Fee, Expense Allowance and Placement Agent Warrants attributable to those investors
pursuant to the terms of an executed sub-agent agreement with such Placement Agent. The Company has agreed to pay certain other expenses of the Placement Agent,
including the fees and expenses of its counsel, in connection with the Offering. Subject to certain customary exceptions, we will also indemnify the Placement Agent to the
fullest extent permitted by law against certain liabilities that may be incurred in connection with the Offering, including certain civil liabilities under the Securities Act, and,
where such indemnification is not available, to contribute to the payments the Placement Agent and its sub-agents may be required to make in respect of such liabilities.




Accounting for the Merger

The Merger is expected to be accounted for as a reverse recapitalization in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(“GAAP”). Under this method of accounting, Unite Acquisition, which is the legal acquirer, is treated as the “acquired” company for financial reporting purposes and Private
Adaptin is treated as the accounting acquirer. This determination was primarily due to Unite Acquisition being determined to be a shell company in that it did not meet the
GAAP definition of a business, did not have more than nominal assets, and does not have more than nominal operations at the time of the merger. Accordingly, for accounting
purposes, the Merger will be treated as the equivalent of a capital transaction in which Private Adaptin is issuing stock for the net assets of Unite Acquisition. The net assets of
Unite Acquisition will be stated at historical cost, with no goodwill or other intangible assets recorded.

Basis for Pro Forma Presentation

The following pro forma combined financial information has been prepared in accordance with Article 11 of Regulation S-X, as amended by the final rule, Release
No. 33-10786, “Amendments to Financial Disclosures about Acquired and Disposed Businesses.” Release No. 33-10786 replaces the existing pro forma adjustment criteria
with simplified requirements to depict the accounting for the Merger, Offering, and related transactions (“Transaction Accounting Adjustments™) and are permitted to present
the reasonably estimable synergies and other transaction effects that have occurred or reasonably expected to occur (“Management’s Adjustments”). Management of the
Company has elected not to present Management’s Adjustments and has only presented Transaction Accounting Adjustments in the pro forma combined financial statements.

The pro forma combined financial statements are provided for informational purposes as required by Form 8-K and do not purport to represent what the results of
operations or financial position of the Company would actually have been had the Merger and Offering occurred on the dates noted above, or to project the results of operations
or financial position of the Company for any future periods. In the opinion of management, all necessary adjustments to the pro forma combined financial statements have been
made.

The following pro forma combined balance sheet as of December 31, 2024 combines the historical balance sheet of Unite Acquisition as of December 31, 2024 with
the historical balance sheet of Private Adaptin as of December 31, 2024 giving further effect to the Transaction Accounting Adjustments, as if they had been consummated as of
December 31, 2024.

The following pro forma combined statements of operations for the year ended December 31, 2024 combine the historical statement of operations of Unite Acquisition
for the year ended December 31, 2024 and the historical statements of operations of Private Adaptin for the year ended December 31, 2024, giving effect to the Pro Forma
Adjustments as if they had been consummated on January 1, 2024, the beginning of the earliest period presented.

Assumptions underlying the Transaction Accounting Adjustments are described in the accompanying notes, which should be read in conjunction with the pro forma
combined financial statements. The Transaction Accounting Adjustments and other adjustments are based on available information and assumptions that the Company’s
management believes are reasonable. Such adjustments are estimates and actual experience may differ from expectations.

The financial statements of Private Adaptin and Unite Acquisition were prepared in accordance with GAAP.

The pro forma combined financial information has been derived from, and should be read in conjunction with:

e Unite Acquisition’s audited financial statements included in its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the annual period ended December 31, 2024, filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) on April 15, 2025 (“Unite Form 10-K”);

e Private Adaptin’s audited financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2024, that are included as Exhibit 99.1 in this Amendment No. 1.




ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash
Prepaid insurance
Total Current Assets
Deferred financing costs
Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
(DEFICIENCY)
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Note payable
Convertible notes payable, net
Derivative liability
Accrued interest
Total Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities

STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIENCY)
Common stock
Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated deficit
Total Stockholders’ Equity (Deficiency)

Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity (Deficiency) $

See accompanying notes to the unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements

ADAPTIN BIO, INC.
Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Balance Sheet
As of December 31, 2024

Historical Transaction Pro Forma
Private Unite Accounting Combined
Adaptin Acquisition Adjustments Notes Total
Note A Note B Note C
$ 34,085 $ 12,619 §$ 4,342,088 (a), (e), () $ 4,388,792
11,454 - - 11,454
45,539 12,619 4,342,088 4,400,246
193,876 - (193,876) (H -
$ 239,415 § 12,619 § 4,148,212 $ 4,400,246
$ 2,410,991 § 5,800 $ 241,751 (d) $ 2,658,632
- 275,000 (275,000) ® -
1,248,708 - (1,248,708) (b) -
544,957 - (544,957) (b) -
134,875 5,786 (140,661) (b), () -
4,339,531 286,676 (1,967,575) 2,658,632
4,339,531 286,676 (1,967,575) 2,658,632
$ 1 8 500 § 339 (a), (b), (c) $ 840
24,115 - 5,818,901  (a), (b), (c), (e), (f) 5,843,016
(4,124,232) (274,557) 296,547 (b), (c), (d) (4,102,242)
(4,100,116) (274,057) 6,115,787 1,741,614
239,415 § 12,619 $ 4,148,212 $ 4,400,246




ADAPTIN BIO, INC.

Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Statement of Operations
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024

Operating Expenses
Research and development
General and administrative

Total operating expenses

Loss from operations
Other expense (income):
Interest expense
Change in fair value of derivative liability
Loss (gain) on extinguishment
Total other expense (income)
Net loss

Net loss per common share - basic and diluted

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding - basic
and diluted

See accompanying notes to the unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements

Historical Transaction Pro Forma
Private Unite Accounting Combined
Adaptin Acquisition Adjustments Notes Total
Note A Note B Note C
1,824,591 § - 8 = $ 1,824,591
745,294 155,374 241,751 (a) 1,142,419
2,569,885 155,374 241,751 2,967,010
(2,569,885) (155,374) (241,751) (2,967,010)
341,048 5,786 (346,834) (a), (¢) -
17,087 - (17,087) (c) -
194,537 - (458,278) (b), (c) (263,741)
552,672 5,786 (822,199) (263,741)
(3,122,557) $ (161,160) $ 580,448 $ (2,703,269)
(2,074.79) $ (0.03) $ (0.32)
1,505 5,000,000 3,394,253

(d 8,395,758




Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Statements

1. Basis of Pro Forma Presentation

The pro forma combined financial statements have been prepared for illustrative and informational purposes only and were prepared from the respective historical information
of Unite Acquisition and Private Adaptin, and reflect adjustments to the historical information in accordance with the SEC Final Rule Release No. 33-10786 and in accordance
with Article 11 of Regulation S-X of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. We have accounted for the Merger in these pro forma condensed combined financial
statements as a reverse recapitalization, in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards Codification Topic 805 “Business
Combinations” (“ASC 805”). In accordance with ASC 805, this is a capital transaction of Private Adaptin (the legal acquiree) and is the equivalent to the issuance of shares by
Private Adaptin for the net monetary assets of Unite Acquisition, accompanied by a recapitalization.

Transaction Accounting Adjustments reflected in the pro forma combined balance sheet are based on items that are factually supportable and directly attributable to the business
combination. Transaction Accounting Adjustments reflected in the pro forma combined statements of income are based on items that are factually supportable, directly
attributable to the business combination and are expected to have a continuing impact on the combined results. The pro forma combined financial information does not reflect
the cost of any integration activities or benefits from the business combination, including potential synergies that may be generated in future periods.

2. Transaction Accounting Adjustments

The following Transaction Accounting Adjustments give effect to the Merger.

Pro Forma Combined Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2024

Note A

Note B

Derived from the balance sheet of Private Adaptin as of December 31, 2024, included elsewhere in this Amendment No. 1.

Derived from the balance sheet of Unite Acquisition as of December 31, 2024, filed with the SEC in the Unite Form 10-K.

Transaction Accounting Adjustments:

Note C

(2)

(b)

(©

(d
(O]
®

To record the $6,161,505 of gross proceeds received in connection with the Closings for which 1,400,342 Units are to be issued, with each Unit consisting of
(i) one share of Common Stock, (ii) an A Warrant representing the right to purchase one share of Common Stock, and (iii) a B Warrant, representing the right
to purchase one-half of a share of Common Stock.

To record the gain on extinguishment of $263,741 associated with the (i) the issuance of Pre-Merger Warrants with aggregate fair value of $247,906 and ii)
conversion of the Bridge Notes with aggregate principal of $1,500,000, debt discount of $251,292, accrued interest of $134,875 and (iii) embedded
derivatives with aggregate fair value of $544,957 into an aggregate of 495,417 shares of Unite Acquisition Common Stock with aggregate fair value of
$1,416,893.

To give effect to the reverse recapitalization whereby Unite Acquisition will issue 3,249,999 shares of Unite Acquisition Common Stock to the shareholders
of Private Adaptin in exchange for Private Adaptin’s historical common stock and additional paid-in capital. In connection with the Merger, the Unite
Acquisition shareholder has agreed to cancel and retire 1,750,000 shares of Common Stock. Furthermore, to eliminate the historical accumulated deficit of
Unite Acquisition of $274,557 as it has been deemed to be the accounting acquiree.

To give effect to an additional estimated $241,751 of Merger expenses to be incurred subsequent to December 31, 2024 with an offset to accrued expenses.

To record Offering costs in aggregate of $1,538,631 deducted against proceeds from the Offering to additional paid-in capital.

To record the reclassification of previously deferred financing costs in connection to the Offering of $193,876 to additional paid-in-capital. Furthermore, to
record the repayment of a note payable and accrued interest thereon of $275,000 and $5,786, respectively, related to the Merger and Offering.




Pro Forma Combined Stat t of Operations For The Year Ended December 31, 2024
Note A Derived from the statement of operations of Private Adaptin for the year ended December 31, 2024, included elsewhere in this Amendment No. 1.
Note B Derived from the statement of operations of Unite Acquisition for the year ended December 31, 2024, filed with the Unite Form 10-K.
Transaction Accounting Adjustments:
Note C

(a) To record the $241,751 of estimated Merger expenses incurred subsequent to December 31, 2024. Furthermore, to eliminate interest expense related to a note
payable fully repaid as a result of the Merger and Offering.

(b) To record the gain on extinguishment of $263,741 associated with the (i) issuance of Pre-Merger Warrants with aggregate fair value of $247,906 and (ii)
conversion of the Bridge Notes with aggregate principal of $1,500,000, debt discount of $251,292, accrued interest of $134,875 and (iii) embedded
derivatives with aggregate fair value of $544,957 into an aggregate of 495,417 shares of Unite Acquisition Common Stock with aggregate fair value of
$1,416,893.

(c) To eliminate interest expense and amortization of debt discount related to the Bridge Notes extinguished in the transaction. Furthermore, to eliminate the
historical loss on change in fair value of derivative liability and the historical loss on extinguishment.

(d) The below table illustrates the adjustment to the weighted average shares outstanding used in the earnings per share calculations for the additional shares of
Unite Acquisition Common Stock issued as consideration to the Private Adaptin stockholders, less the cancellation shares, plus the additional shares of Unite
Acquisition Common Stock issued in connection with the Offering, shares of Unite Acquisition Common Stock issued in connection with the conversion of
Bridge Notes less the historical outstanding Private Adaptin common stock.

‘Weighted
Average
Number of
For the Year Ended December 31, 2024 Shares
Shares issued to shareholders of Private Adaptin 3,249,999
Unite Acquisition shares eliminated under share cancellation agreement (1,750,000)
Shares issued in connection with the initial closing of the Offering 1,080,814
Shares issued in connection with the final closing of the Offering 319,528
Conversion of Bridge Notes 495,417
Private Adaptin historical shares exchanged (1,505)
3,394,253




Exhibit 99.3

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Defined terms included below that are not otherwise defined in Exhibit 99.3 to this Amendment No. 1 on Form 8-K/A (“Amendment No. 1), which amends the Current Report
on Form 8-K filed by Adaptin Bio, Inc. (formerly Unite Acquisition 1 Corp.) on February 18, 2025 (the “Original Report”), have the same meaning as terms defined and
included in Amendment No. 1 and the Original Report.

The following “Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” of Adaptin Bio Operating Corporation (formerly Adaptin Bio, Inc.
and referred to herein as Private Adaptin) should be read in conjunction with the “Description of Business” section of the Original Report and Private Adaptin's audited
financial statements as of and for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 included in Exhibit 99.1 to this Amendment No. 1 and other information included in the
Original Report. The following discussion contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Private Adaptin’s actual results could differ materially from
such forward-looking statements. Factors that could cause or contribute to those differences include, but are not limited to, those identified in the sections titled “Risk Factors”
and “Forward-Looking Statements” included in the Original Report. Additionally, Private Adaptin’s historical results are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be
expected in any future period.

Unless the context otherwise requires, all references in this Exhibit 99.3 to “we,” “us,” or “our” refer to Private Adaptin prior to the consummation of the Merger and to
public reporting company Adaptin Bio, Inc., formerly Unite Acquisition 1 Corp. (“Unite Acquisition”), following the consummation of the Merger.

Business Overview

We are a biopharmaceutical company pioneering a transformational approach to enhancing the transfer of therapeutics into the brain, facilitating the treatment of brain cancers
and other unmet medical conditions. Our precision medicine technology, originally developed by researchers in the Department of Neurosurgery at Duke University, harnesses
the human immune system’s ability to target, recognize, destroy or deliver therapeutics to specific cells, including cancer cells. Our mission is to be the global leader and
pioneer of this new treatment paradigm, integrating recombinant technology, gene therapy and cell therapy to address the challenges of targeting and delivering effective
therapies, including to the brain for cancer and other CNS indications.

We are closely working with the researchers at Duke University to translate preclinical proof of concept data of our proprietary platform technology, the BRiTE Platform, into
human clinical trials. BRiTE is a translatable method to specifically target malignant glioma using a tumor-specific, fully human bispecific antibody that redirects patients' own
T cells to recognize and destroy tumor cells. Our first application of BRiTE is APTN-101, a proprietary EGFRVIII x CD3 bispecific T cell engager, that is able to eliminate
malignant glioma tumors in a variety of aggressive preclinical orthotopic tumor models. We designed APTN-101 to specifically redirect T cells against tumors expressing a
well-characterized, mutated form of EGFR on a number of tumor types, including glioblastoma, breast and lung cancer. APTN-101 has been recently accepted under an
investigator-led IND to begin first-in-human studies in brain cancer. Our goal is to complete preclinical studies on additional product candidates and file multiple INDs.

Duke University Exclusive Licensing Agreement

As described in the Original Report, effective January 11, 2023, Private Adaptin entered into a patent license agreement (the “Duke License”) with Duke University, whereby
Duke University granted Private Adaptin an exclusive license with a right to sublicense the precision medicine technology, which we intend to develop using our BRiTE
Platform. As part of the consideration for the license, Private Adaptin issued Duke 75 shares of Private Adaptin common stock (that were valued at $175.86 per share, or
$13,189, representing 5% of Private Adaptin’s then issued and outstanding common stock on a fully diluted basis). Private Adaptin also agreed to make milestone payments and
pay royalties to Duke University, as well as to reimburse Duke University for prior patent expenses, as set forth in more detail below and in the Original Report.




Private Adaptin recorded the issuance of its common stock and has accrued for the reimbursement of prior patent expenses, but had not reached any of the clinical or regulatory
milestones or transacted its first commercial sale as of December 31, 2024.

Bridge Financings

Private Adaptin raised bridge financing through the offer and sale (a) in 2023 of $500,000 principal amount of its 10% Secured Promissory Notes (the “2023 Bridge Notes™)
(including warrants to purchase up to 56,815 shares of Private Adaptin or its parent company’s common stock at an exercise price of $4.40 per share) and (b) in 2024 of
$1,000,000 principal amount of its 10% Secured Subordinated Convertible Promissory Notes (the “2024 Bridge Notes”), which in each case were sold to a limited number of
accredited investors pursuant to Regulation D under the Securities Act. In December 2024, the 2023 Bridge Notes were cancelled and exchanged for $500,000 principal amount
of the Private Adaptin’s 10% Secured Convertible Promissory Notes (the “Exchange Notes”). In connection with the note exchange, the holders of the 2023 Bridge Notes were
also issued warrants to purchase up to 75,755 shares of Private Adaptin’s or its parent company’s common stock at an exercise price of $3.30 per share. The Exchange Notes,
collectively with the 2024 Bridge Notes, are referred to herein as the “Bridge Notes”.

The Merger

On February 11, 2025, Private Adaptin entered into a Merger Agreement with Unite Acquisition and Unite Acquisition’s wholly-owned subsidiary Adaptin Acquisition Co.
(“Merger Sub”). Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, Merger Sub merged with and into Private Adaptin, with Private Adaptin continuing as the surviving corporation and the
wholly-owned subsidiary of Unite Acquisition (the “Merger”). Pursuant the Merger, and all of the outstanding stock of Private Adaptin was converted into shares of Unite
Acquisition common stock. In addition, in connection with the Merger, all of Private Adaptin’s Bridge Notes converted into shares of Unite Acquisition common stock at $3.30
per share and all of Private Adaptin’s outstanding warrants became exercisable for shares of Unite Acquisition common stock. In connection with the Merger, Private Adaptin
was renamed Adaptin Bio Operating Company and Unite Acquisition, which now continues the business of Private Adaptin as a public reporting company, was renamed
Adaptin Bio, Inc.

Concurrent with the closing of the Merger, Adaptin Bio, Inc. sold, in an initial closing of its Offering, 1,080,814 units (the “Units”) at a purchase price of $4.40 per Unit, each
consisting of (i) one share of common stock of Adaptin Bio, Inc., (ii) a one-year warrant to purchase one share of common stock of Adaptin Bio, Inc. at an exercise price of
$4.40 per share, and (iii) a five-year warrant to purchase one-half of a share of common stock of Adaptin Bio, Inc. at an exercise price of $6.60 per share. On March 31, 2025,
Adaptin Bio, Inc. sold, in the final closing of its Offering, 319,529 Units for an aggregate purchase price of $1,405,923.

Accounting Treatment, Change of Control

The Merger was accounted for as a “reverse merger” or “reverse acquisition,” and Private Adaptin is deemed to be the acquirer in the reverse merger. As a result of the issuance
of the shares of Adaptin Bio, Inc.’s common stock pursuant to the Merger, a change in control of Private Adaptin occurred as of the Closing Date of the Merger.

Operations Overview

Since the commencement of our operations in 2021, we have devoted substantially all of our resources to supporting our product development efforts, raising capital to support
and expand such activities, and providing general and administrative support for these operations. We operate our business using a significant outsourcing model. As such, our
team is composed of a small group of employees who direct a significantly large number of team members, including vendors and consultants, to enable execution of our
operational plans. We do not currently have any products approved for sale, and we will continue to incur significant research and development and general administrative
expenses related to our operations.




Since inception, we have incurred significant operating losses. For the year ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, we recorded net losses of approximately $3.1 million and $1.0
million, respectively. As of December 31, 2024, we had an accumulated deficit of approximately $4.1 million. We expect to continue to incur significant losses for the
foreseeable future. We anticipate that a substantial portion of our capital resources and efforts in the foreseeable future will be focused on completing the necessary
development activities required for applying for and obtaining regulatory approval for our product candidates and, subsequently, preparing for potential commercialization of
our product candidates. We had approximately $34,000 of cash at December 31, 2024.

We expect to continue to incur significant expenses and operating losses for at least the next several years. Our net losses may fluctuate significantly from period to period,
depending on the timing of our planned clinical trials and expenditures on other research and development activities. We expect our expenses will increase substantially over
time as we:

e continue our ongoing and planned development of APTN-101, including pre-clinical activity and our Phase 1 investigator-led trial for the treatment of GBM;
e build a portfolio of product candidates through development, or the acquisition or in-license of drugs, product candidates or technologies;

e initiate preclinical studies and clinical trials for APTN-101 for any additional indications we may pursue and for any additional product candidates that we may pursue
in the future;

e maintain, protect and expand our intellectual property portfolio;
e hire clinical, regulatory and scientific personnel;
e add operational, financial and management information systems and personnel, including personnel to support our product development efforts; and
e incur additional legal, accounting, insurance and other expenses associated with operating as a public company.
The Macroeconomic Climate

The recent economic trends and political changes, including the proposed implementation of a tariff structure, may materially adversely affect our business and corresponding
financial position and cash flows. While inflationary factors have trended down and interest rates are beginning to trend down, they still may impact our overhead costs and
may adversely affect our operating results. While interest rates have recently been trending down, they remain high and present a challenge impacting the United States and
global economies. Recent volatility in the major stock indices could also present challenges in accessing additional capital. Such factors could make it more difficult for us to
obtain traditional financing on acceptable terms, if at all, in the future. Although we do not believe that inflation has had a material impact on our financial position or results of
operations to date, we may experience increases in the near future on our operating costs, including our labor, due to supply chain constraints, consequences associated with
pandemics or public health situations, the Russia-Ukraine war, and other U.S. geopolitical issues, such as the proposed tariff structures, affecting other territories and employee
availability and wage increases, all of which may result in additional stress on our working capital resources.

Components of Results of Operations
Research and Development Expenses

Research and development expenses consist primarily of fees paid to third-party service providers and, in future periods, we expect will include additional personnel costs and
other personnel-related compensation expenses. Research and development expenses also include the cost of in-process research and development (“IPR&D”) assets purchased
in an asset acquisition transaction. We have concluded that the costs associated with licensing our technology are IPR&D and we expensed those costs upon execution of the
Duke License in 2023. Research and development costs after the acquisition are expensed as incurred. We expense research and development costs in the periods in which they
are incurred. Costs for certain development activities are recognized based on an evaluation of the progress to completion of specific tasks using information and data provided
to us by our vendors, collaborators and third-party service providers.




To date, substantially all our research and development expenses have been related to the licensing and preclinical development of APTN-101. As we progress, we expect our
research and development costs to increase for additional preclinical and clinical development of APTN-101 in GBM.

The process of conducting the necessary clinical research to obtain regulatory approval is costly and time-consuming and is subject to uncertainties and delays. As a result of
the uncertainties discussed above, we are unable to determine the duration and completion costs of our research and development projects or when and to what extent we will
generate revenue from the commercialization and sale of our product candidates, if at all.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses include expenses for outside professional services and other general administrative expenses. Outside professional services consist of
patent maintenance expenses, legal, accounting, insurance and audit services and other consulting fees.

We also expect to incur expenses as a public company, including expenses related to compliance with SEC rules and regulations and those of any national securities exchange
on which our securities are traded, additional insurance expenses, investor relations activities, and other administrative and professional services.

Interest Expense

Interest expense primarily consists of contractual debt interest expense, the amortization of debt issuance costs and the amortization of discounts arising from bifurcated
derivative liabilities.

Results of Operations
Comparison of the Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023
The following table summarizes our results of operations and changes for the periods indicated:

Year ended December 31,

2024 2023 $ Change % Change
OPERATING EXPENSES
Research and development $ 1,824,591 $ 510,356 $ 1,314,235 258%
General and administrative 745,294 366,960 378,334 103%
Total Operating Expenses 2,569,885 877,316 1,692,569 193%
LOSS FROM OPERATIONS (2,569,885) (877,316) (1,692,569) 193%
Interest Expense 341,048 104,487 236,561 226%
Loss on fair value of derivative liability 17,087 - 17,087 100%
Loss on extinguishment of debt 194,537 - 194,537 100%
Total Other Expenses 552,672 104,487
NET LOSS $ (3,122,557)  $ (981,803) $ (2,140,754) 218%




Research and Development Expenses

Research and development expenses increased by $1,314,235, or 258%, for the year ended December 31, 2024 when compared to research and development expenses for the
year ended December 31, 2023. During 2024, the increase in research and development costs are primarily associated with a repeat-dose toxicology study of APTN-101 that
began in late 2023. Costs incurred during the year ended December 31, 2023 consist primarily of costs related to the execution of the Duke License that was determined to be
IPR&D acquired in an asset transaction. These costs were expensed as the technology has not received regulatory approval for marketing and, absent obtaining such approval,
has no established alternative future use.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses increased by $378,334, or 103%, for the year ended December 31, 2024 when compared to the year ended December 31, 2023. The
increase was primarily related to increases in consulting costs related to management of the Company as business activities increased.

Interest Expense

Interest expense increased $236,561 for the year ended December 31, 2024 when compared to the year ended December 31, 2023. The increase in interest expense was related
to issuance of $1.0 million in 2024 Bridge Notes and the interest accrued, debt issuance costs amortization, discounts related to derivative liability amortization and related
costs. Additionally, at issuance of the 2024 Bridge Notes and based on the information then currently available, we recorded a bifurcated derivative liability related to the
embedded redemption feature of this debt of $333,333. At December 31, 2024, the carrying value of the derivative liability totaled $350,420, after giving effect to the change in
fair value of $17,087. Additionally, a loss on debt extinguishment of $194,537 was recorded related to the conversion feature of the Exchange Notes issued in December 2024.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We have incurred operating losses and experienced negative operating cash flows since our inception, and we anticipate continuing to incur losses for at least the next several
years as we continue to develop our product candidates. As of December 31, 2024, we had cash of $34,085 and an accumulated deficit of approximately $4.1 million.

As set forth above, in 2023 and 2024, we raised bridge financing through the offer and sale of $1,500,000 of Bridge Notes. At the initial closing of the Offering, the $1,500,000
aggregate principal amount of outstanding Bridge Notes, plus accrued interest thereon, converted automatically into shares of Adaptin Bio, Inc. common stock at a conversion
price of $3.30 per share, or 501,140 shares of common stock of Adaptin Bio, Inc., and the holders of the 2023 Bridge Notes were issued, pursuant to existing agreements, Pre-
Merger Warrants to purchase up to 132,570 shares of our Adaptin Bio, Inc. common stock at an exercise price of $3.30 or $4.40 per share and with a term of five years.

Based on our current operating plan, we anticipate that our existing cash balance will not be sufficient to fund our operating activities for the next twelve months and, as such,
we will need to obtain additional funding. We plan to continue to fund our losses from operations through cash on hand, as well as through future equity offerings, debt
financings, or other third-party funding. There can be no assurance that additional funds will be available when needed from any source or, if available, will be available on
terms that are acceptable to us. Even if we raise additional capital, we may also be required to modify, delay or abandon some of our plans which could have a material adverse
effect on our business, operating results and financial condition and our ability to achieve our intended business objectives. Any of these actions could materially harm our
business, results of operations and future prospects.




Cash Flows
The following table shows a summary of our cash flows for the periods presented:

For the years ended December 31,

2024 2023 $ Change % Change
Net cash (used in) provided by:
Operating activities (649,283) (394,186) (255,097) -65%
Financing activities 678,614 398,890 279,724 -70%
Net increase in cash during the periods 29,331 4,704 24,627 524%

Operating Activities

Net cash used in operating activities was $649,283 for the year ended December 31, 2024, compared to $394,186 of cash used in operating activities for the comparable prior
year period. The increase of $255,097 consists of increased operating activity in 2024 related to a repeat-dose toxicology study that was initiated in late 2023 along with
increases in consulting costs in 2024 related to management of the Company with increased business activities.

Net cash used in operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2023 was $394,186 and reflects costs associated with the execution of the Duke License in 2023 and
increases in legal and professional fees.

Financing Activities

Net cash provided by financing activities was $678,614 for the year ended December 31, 2024 related to the issuance of the 2024 Bridge Notes in the amount of $1,000,000
offset by debt issuance costs and $193,876 of deferred equity issuance costs related to the Merger. Additionally, in December 2024, the 2023 Bridge Notes were cancelled and
exchanged for the Exchange Notes, with the debt modification being accounted for as an extinguishment resulting in a loss on extinguishment of $194,537. For the year ended
December 31, 2023, net cash provided by financing activities was $398,890 related to the issuance of the 2023 Bridge Notes in the amount of $500,000 offset by debt issuance
costs.

Indebtedness

In 2023, we entered into Securities Purchase Agreements resulting in the issuance of an aggregate of $500,000 of the 2023 Bridge Notes. We incurred $101,110 in debt issuance
costs related to the issuance of this debt. For the year ended December 31, 2024, we accrued interest of $49,997 and recorded the amortization of the debt issuance costs of
$30,238. For the year ended December 31, 2023, we also accrued interest of $33,615 and recorded the amortization expense of the debt issuance costs of $70,872. In December
2024, the 2023 Bridge Notes were cancelled and exchanged for the Exchange Notes.

During the year ended December 31, 2024, we entered into Securities Purchase Agreements resulting in the issuance of an aggregate of $1.0 million of the 2024 Bridge Notes.
We incurred approximately $128,000 in debt issuance costs related to the issuance of this debt. As of December 31, 2024, we had recorded accrued interest expense of $51,262,
amortization of debt issuance costs of $58,695, amortization of discounts related to an embedded derivative liability of $150,856 and a loss on fair value of derivative liabilities
of $17,087.




Funding Requirements

We use our cash primarily to fund research and development expenditures. We expect our research and development expenses to increase as we continue the development of
APTN-101. We expect to incur an increase in general and administrative expenses in 2025 primarily related to supporting our increasing research and development activities
and becoming a publicly held company with the resulting professional fees, personnel and regulatory compliance related costs. We expect to incur increasing operating losses
for the foreseeable future as we continue the preclinical and clinical development of our product candidate. At this time, due to the inherently unpredictable nature of clinical
development, we cannot reasonably estimate the costs we will incur and the timelines that will be required to complete development, obtain marketing approval, and
commercialize APTN-101 or any future product candidates, if at all. For the same reasons, we are also unable to predict when, if ever, we will generate revenue from product
sales or whether, or when, if ever, we may achieve profitability. Clinical and preclinical development timelines, the probability of success, and development costs can differ
materially from expectations.

The timing and amount of our operating expenditures will depend largely on:
e the timing, progress and results of our ongoing and planned preclinical and clinical development activities for APTN-101 in GBM;
e the scope, progress, results and costs of preclinical development, testing and clinical trials of APTN-101 for any additional indications;
e the ability of our vendors and third-party service providers to accurately forecast expenses and deliver on expectations;

e the costs and timing of preparing, filing and prosecuting patent applications, maintaining and enforcing our intellectual property rights and defending any intellectual
property-related claims; and

e the extent to which we acquire or in-license other product candidates and technologies.

Until such time, if ever, as we can generate substantial revenue from product sales, we expect to fund our operations and capital funding needs through equity and/or debt
financing. We may also consider entering into collaboration arrangements or selectively partnering for clinical development and commercialization. The sale of additional
equity would result in additional dilution to our shareholders. The incurrence of debt financing would result in debt service obligations and the instruments governing such debt
could provide for operating and financing covenants that restrict our operations or our ability to incur additional indebtedness, among other items. If we are not able to secure
adequate additional funding, we may be forced to make reductions in spending, extend payment terms with suppliers, liquidate assets where possible, and/or suspend or curtail
planned programs. Any of these actions could materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments
Duke License

In January 2023, we entered into the Duke License for an exclusive, world-wide, sub-licensable license to precision medicine technology. As a component of the Duke License,
we agreed to make payments based on clinical and commercial milestones and continuing royalty payments on any sales made after approval by regulatory authorities. These
milestones include initiation of Phase II or Phase III clinical trials, submission of applications for market approval in multiple jurisdictions including the United States,
European Union and Japan and the initiation of post-approval commercial sales in the same jurisdictions. Based on an assumption that all milestones related to the current
development program are met during the course of the Duke License, these milestone payments would total approximately $11.7 million. As of December 31, 2024, we had not
met any milestones as defined in the agreement and, accordingly, have recorded no expense or liability related to such payments.

We also agreed to pay royalties equal to low- to mid- single digit percentages of annual net sales on a country-by-country and product-by-product basis subject to downward
adjustment to low single digit percentages of our net annual sales in the event there is no valid claim of a patent for the product, with minimum annual royalty levels
established. We also must pay Duke low to mid-double digit percentages of any sublicensing fees as set forth in the Duke License. We have not recorded and do not owe any
royalties or sublicensing fees for the year ended December 31, 2024.




Off-Balance Sheet Transactions

We did not have during the periods presented, and we do not currently have, any off-balance sheet financing arrangements or any relationships with unconsolidated entities or
financial partnerships, such as structured finance or special purpose entities, that were established for the purpose of facilitating off-balance sheet arrangements or other
contractually narrow or limited purposes.

Critical Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States requires us to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Significant estimates and assumptions reflected in the financial statements relate to and include, but are not limited to, the fair value of common stock and other assumptions
used to measure share-based consideration transferred for acquired assets under the Duke License, the fair value of derivative liabilities along with prepaid expenses and
accrued liabilities that are measured based on progress toward completion of research and development projects.

Future events and their effects cannot be predicted with certainty; accordingly, accounting estimates require the exercise of judgment. Accounting estimates used in the
preparation of these financial statements change as new events occur, as more experience is acquired, as additional information is obtained and as the operating environment
changes.




